# Lake and Peninsula School District



# Student- Parent Handbook 2016 – 2017



THE LAKE AND PENINSULA SCHOOL DISTRICT

101 Jensen Drive P.O. Box 498 King Salmon, Alaska 99613 Phone (907) 246-4280 / Fax (907) 246-4473



Dear Students and Parents,

The School Board, District Administration and Staff of the Lake and Peninsula School District welcome you to the 2016-2017 school year! The purpose of this handbook is to provide LPSD students and parents with information concerning the school operating laws, regulations and procedures. Please take time to read this handbook and familiarize yourself with the basic operating rules of our schools.

The components of this handbook are based on State of Alaska Statutes regarding school law, policies, procedures and regulations. Community input was sought by the School Board and was incorporated into this document. This handbook was also created with additional guidance from LPSD Board Policies and Administrative Regulations.

Following the procedures within this handbook will ensure consistency across our district this year. It is recommended that school staff, and students with their parents have an open discussion on these procedures at the beginning of the year. Again, please take some time to review the contents of this document.

If you have any questions or concerns with these policies and procedures, please feel free to give me a call. I look forward to another great school year!

Sincerely,

Ty Mase Superintendent Lake and Peninsula School District

## THE LAKE AND PENINSULA SCHOOL DISTRICT STUDENT AND PARENT HANDBOOK

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

WELCOME LETTER	2
SCHOOL BOARD MISSION STATEMENT	4
TIPS ON HOW TO BE A SUCCESSFUL STUDENT	4
GUIDANCE AND COUNSELING	5
SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICES	5
HIGHLY QUALIFIED	6
FEDERAL PROGRAMS COMPLAINT PROCEDURES	6
ATTENDANCE	7
CURRICULUM AND HIGH SCHOOL	
GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS	8
STUDENT REPORTING	10
STUDENT ACCIDENTS AND ACCIDENT INSURANCE	11
STUDENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES	11
CONCERNS/COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE	12
DUE PROCESS/ DISCIPLINE	10
ALCOHOL, DRUGS, AND TOBACCO	14
WEAPONS AND DANGEROUS INSTRUMENTS	15
DUE PROCESS	17
VISITORS POLICY	19
PUBLIC DISPLAY OF AFFECTION	20
CELL PHONES/ELECTRONIC DEVICES	20
SCHOOL PHONE	20
SEARCH AND SEIZURE	20
ACTIVITY TRAVEL/STUDENT RELEASE	20
FIELD TRIPS/STUDENT TRAVEL	20
EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITY ELIGIBILITY	
REQUIREMENTS	21
COLD WEATHER TRAVEL RESTRICTIONS	23
INTERNET SAFETY POLICY	24
PARENT NOTICE FOR DIRECTORY INFORMATION	28
NOTICE FOR STUDENT RECORD REQUEST	29

# SCHOOL BOARD MISSION STATEMENT

The Mission of the Lake & Peninsula School District is to develop productive citizens who are positive role models, self-directed learners, academically prepared and resilient. We will accomplish this through our Standards-Based System in a safe, culturally sensitive environment with an emphasis on technology, extended opportunities, and committed partnerships.

# TIPS ON HOW TO BE A SUCCESSFUL STUDENT

Success in school involves commitment, effort and time. The following general information is provided for students as a guide for the development of a successful and enjoyable school career.

**SET GOALS:** Clearly defined goals help to identify where you want to go, how you are progressing and when you reach the finish line. Set both short and long term goals.

**WORK INDEPENDENTLY:** Be a self starter. Discipline yourself to complete assignments and track your goals to be sure you are meeting them.

**ORGANIZE YOUR TIME:** Your schedule should provide for study time, school-related activities, out-of-school activities and leisure activities.

**FIND A GOOD PLACE TO STUDY**: Remove any distractions. Don't kid yourself into thinking you can study as effectively with music blaring as you can in a quiet atmosphere. Gather all needed materials before starting to study. Have easy access to pencils, books, and any other materials that are needed.

**USE AN ASSIGNMENT NOTEBOOK**: Don't trust your memory. You should be sure that you know what assignments are required **and** when they are due.

**TACKLE HARD ASSIGNMENTS FIRST:** Do memory work first and alternate between written assignments and reading. Most students can learn more in three 40-minute sessions than they can in one session of 120 minutes.

**CONCENTRATE:** Break up your study time. It is easier to concentrate if you divide your study time among different subjects and give yourself a study break occasionally (10 minutes per hour).

**TAKE NOTES IN CLASS**: You will be able to pay closer attention to the instructor if you take notes in class. Note-taking also helps you to better remember the information. Your teacher will help you to recognize important information by giving you clues. Important statements may be spoken more slowly, written on the chalkboard, or repeated. Write key phrases only. Keep your notes together, dated and in order. They will be helpful when studying before a test.

**LISTEN IN CLASS AND THEN ASK QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION**: If you don't understand the information, don't be afraid to ask for an explanation!

**COMMUNICATE WITH THE STAFF**: Let your teachers and counselors know who you are and what you require in order to achieve your goals. Communication is one of the key elements of a successful school career. It is a valuable asset that can only be developed through continued use and interaction.

# **GUIDANCE AND COUNSELING**

Problem solving: A counselor or teacher can be a great help when you have personal problems. You may want to see a staff member if:

- 1. You need someone to listen;
- 2. Things aren't going well at home;
- 3. You feel sad, lonely, depressed, unloved;
- 4. You're worried about something;
- 5. You're forming habits you would like to stop;
- 6. You're having trouble saying "No" to your friends;
- 7. You need help in getting along with others; or
- 8. You would like to join a group to share thoughts and feelings about problems.

College and Career Information: Your teacher(s), or Principal can help put you in contact with one of the District's Itinerant Counselors when.....

- 1. You want information about making your career choices or require job information;
- 2. You need college or other post-high school information;
- 3. You need financial aid information;
- 4. You would like information on scholarships;
- 5. You need to request letters of recommendation;
- 6. You would like to use the ACIS computer; and/or
- 7. You need information about yourself, your likes and dislikes, or need help to make informed decisions.

Our counselors serve multiple sites. Please e-mail our Counselors when you need assistance.

Ms. Cox:

Ms. Pletcher:

# **SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICES**

#### **Board Policy 6172**

Federal and State Laws require that the Lake and Peninsula School District find and provide a *free and appropriate and public education* (FAPE) to all disabled school age individuals (ages 3-21) residing within the District. The State of Alaska, in accordance with IDEA, recognizes 14 categories of disabilities under which a child may qualify for special education services. These 14 categories are: autism, cognitively impaired, deafness, orthopedic impairment, deaf-blindness, other health impairment, emotional disturbance, traumatic brain injury, hearing impairment, multiple disabilities, visual impairment, specific learning disability, early childhood developmental delay and speech or language impairment.

Students with certified disabilities may require specialized or modified materials, equipment, instructional programs and/or related services. In all such instances, the educationally related services will be provided to the individual in accordance with the Individual with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).

District Personnel, in conjunction with village health aides, conduct an annual Child Find Screening every fall at the District's school locations. While a concentrated screening effort is made every fall, Child Find Screening services are available through the school year. Anyone knowing of a child who may be in need of screening is encouraged to contact the District's Child Find Coordinator.

Anyone knowing of a child who may benefit from such a program is encouraged to contact Pat Manning at 907-246-4280.

# Special Education at the Lake and Peninsula School District

The Lake and Peninsula School District Special Education team is committed to seeing all students within the District succeed in their educational pursuits. The team aims to meet this goal by working with teachers, aides, parents and students to facilitate the individual child's ability to achieve.

The District's Special Education team is lead by Marjorie Waggoner and Pat Manning. The other team members are:

Nancy Anderson:	Chignik Lagoon and Chignik Lake
Paulene Manning:	Perryville, Port Heiden, Levelock and Pilot Point
Kylie Amatuzzi:	Kokhanok and Igiugig
Kathleen Van Dusen:	Tanalian
Paige Norman:	Nondalton
Bob Rychnovsky:	Newhalen
Kitza Durkop:	Chignik Bay and Pilot Point

All of these educators bring to the district a wealth of experience, knowledge, and instructional strategies to help each and every student who has a special or unique education need.

Special Education services are provided in the Lake and Peninsula School District at no cost to the parent of those students who qualify as having a disability that impacts their ability to achieve academically. Students who are identified by their teachers, parents, or other concerned adults, as having possible academic issues can be referred to special education for possible screening, assessment or to begin the intervention process. If you have questions about your child or if you would like general information regarding services that could be provided to your child please feel free to contact your local principal, special education teacher or Pat Manning. The Special Education Team looks forward to working with you this coming school year to meet the needs of every student facing a challenge in learning. By working together we can help our students achieve more than they ever dreamed possible.

# Parent Notification of Highly Qualified Teachers and Paraprofessionals 2015-2016

Parents of Lake and Peninsula School District may request information regarding the professional qualifications of their child's teacher(s) and/or paraprofessionals. Specifically, parents can ask if their teachers have met State qualifications for licensure and if any teachers are under emergency or provisional certification. In addition, parents may request information regarding the qualifications of a paraprofessional who may be working under the direct supervision of the classroom teacher.

You may request this information from: **Pat Manning**: Assistant Superintendent (907) 246-4280 or pmanning@lpsd.com

# **Federal Programs Complaint Procedure:**

The Lake and Peninsula School District participates in a number of Federal Programs. (Examples: Title IX (equal opportunity in education for males and females), Title 1-A (Education for the Disadvantaged), Title 1-C (Migrant), Title I-D (Neglected & Delinquent), Title II-A (Teacher and Principal Training), and Title X (Homeless Education)

Should you have concerns about the District's participation in any Federal Programs you are encourage to talk to your local school administrator.

If you continue to have concerns please contact

Laura Hylton Lake and Peninsula School District 907-246-4280 or lhylton@lpsd.com

When you contact Mr. Dube you will be presented a complaint form and the following procedures will be followed.

- 1. Federal programs related complaints filed with Lake and Peninsula School District will be investigated and resolved, when possible, at a district level.
- 2. Complaints will be addressed in a prompt and courteous manner.
- 3. A response will be provided to the complainant within 30 days, with an additional 30 day allowance, if exceptional conditions exist.
- 4. Complaint form, findings and resolutions will be disseminated to all parties to the complaint and to the school board. Such findings and resolutions shall also be available to parents, teachers, and other members of the general public, provided by the school district, free of charge, if requested.

If after allowing Lake and Peninsula School District adequate time to address and attempt to resolve your complaint, it remains in dispute, complainants have the right to contact the Alaska Department of Education & Early Development, 801 W. 10<sup>th</sup> Street, Suite 200, PO Box 110500, Juneau, AK 99811-0500

# ATTENDANCE

#### **Board Policy 5110**

The School Board recognizes that individual student attendance in school is an important aspect affecting the quality of instruction offered to individual students as well as to the entire student population.

Parents of students between the ages of 7 and 16 are expected to follow the provisions of <u>Alaska School Law</u> <u>14.30.010 to Section 14.30.050</u>, which explains compulsory attendance expectations. Site administrators, teachers, and LSACs shall report students not complying with the Law.

Each school in the District is expected to develop a specific tardy policy to reduce tardiness at its site. Tardiness is defined as a student not being in his/her assigned classroom or seat in that classroom at the beginning of the period. A tardy becomes counted as 1/2 day unexcused absence after the tardiness exceeds 30 minutes.

Successful educational advancement is enhanced by regular school attendance. The responsibility for regular attendance lays with each student and his/her parents or guardian. However, it is the obligation of the school to assist the student and parent to assure that regular school attendance does occur.

1) All absences, whether excused or unexcused, are considered an absence, including but not limited to being sick, family trips, religious holidays, emergencies at home, death in family, medical appointments, and out of school suspension. For those students whose families are engaged in commercial fishing when school begins in the fall, a prearranged absence not to exceed 15 days may be granted.

2) It is the belief of the School Board that family trips should be scheduled either during summer vacation or at times when school is out for vacation. Should a family vacation require the student to miss more than 15 school days, assignments will not be given for the class or classes missed. For absences up to 15 days, the teacher will be required to provide assignments in each class including homework. The work must be completed and returned to the teachers no later than one week after return to school. If a family wishes to vacation for more than 15 school days the parents would be encouraged to enroll the student in a school district in the area of the vacation.

a) A student who has not been in attendance in the District for 20 days, during any reporting period (Quarter) will not receive a Snapshot. (*Added: 7/03*) A Snapshot is the reporting tool that identifies the student's level of progress.

3) Any student attending school in the District must maintain regular attendance. A student who has missed 10

consecutive days unless the absence has been prearranged will be dropped from the attendance records. On return the student must reenroll prior to attending school. (Board Policy revision 8/26/97 and 5/05)

4) When a student's absences exceed 10 days per semester the Site Administrator, shall by written memo, indicate the number of absences and dates of absences and request the parent or guardian to improve their child's attendance at school.

5) When the student's absences exceed 15 days per semester the Site Administrator, shall by written memo, notify the parent and send a copy of the notice to the District Office. Upon receipt of this letter the District Office administrator shall within three (3) days, and monthly thereafter, check and insure that the student is attending school. If continued violation occurs, the designated District Office Administrator or Superintendent or Chief School Administrator, shall by written letter request parental assistance to immediately improve school attendance. A copy of this letter will be sent to the VPSO or nearest state trooper's office requesting enforcement of the Attendance Law.

6) Each site administrator shall notify the students of the attendance and absence policy at the beginning of the school year. Each student shall return to the school a copy of the Statement of Understanding, from the Parent Student Handbook, with parent signature, noting the parent has read the District attendance expectations.

7) Students shall provide a written excuse or telephone call from the parent or guardian indicating the reason for each absence from school.

8) Students maintaining regular attendance shall be eligible to participate in competitive sports activities or other school sponsored activities.

9) No student will participate in a school activity or sport if absent from school the day of the scheduled travel or activity.

10) Any student absent from school for a period of ten consecutive school days will be dropped from the attendance rolls of the school unless satisfactory arrangements are made with the site administrator in advance.

11) Each LSAC is free to adapt more stringent modifications to the above attendance policy provided the modification is coordinated with District Office.

# CURRICULUM & HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS Board Policy 6146.1

The program of instruction in the schools shall be that prescribed by the State Department of Education and as supplemented by the Board of the Lake and Peninsula School District.

The instructional program of the District shall provide instruction suited to and open to all legally eligible children to attend school in the District. All schools within the Lake and Peninsula School District have been designated as Kindergarten through 12<sup>th</sup> grade.

The Lake and Peninsula School District has implemented a standards-based system that is aligned to the Alaska State Content and where appropriate, the Alaska State Performance Standards. The district's standards-based system is comprised of specific performance standards in each of the eight content areas listed below. *(revised 7/09)* 

READING	SCIENCE
WRITING	TECHNOLOGY
MATH	CULTURE AWARENESS
SOCIAL STUDIES	EMPLOYABILITY

The District standards are the basis for all instruction. The District continues to develop skills-based, analytical and performance-based assessments for each level of the district performance standards. Students' must demonstrate 80% proficiency on each assessment to advance to from one level to the next.

The District uses a Personal Education Plan (PEP) to assist each student in successfully completing the required course of study. The PEP assists the District in effectively allocating community and school resources in support of

each student's fulfillment of the vision expressed in the District's Mission Statement. The PEP **is not** an individualized course of study, alternative curriculum, Special Education Individualized Education Plan (IEP), or an exemption from the graduation requirements. The PEP **is** a planning tool prepared by students, parents and educators to outline a course of study and activities to assist the student in meeting their goals.

# **Homework**

Homework is considered a regular part of the school's academic program. Parents are encouraged to provide a regular time and place for students to complete the days' assignments. The schools and all personnel hired by the District are required to support this effort and provide alternatives at school to accomplish homework when no other place is available.

# **Elementary Program**

The elementary program of studies shall include math, reading, writing, social studies, and science. Technology, employability, and cultural awareness are optional in levels 1, 2, and 3.

# **Secondary Program**

The secondary program of studies shall be consistent with the standards-based system.

# High School Graduation Requirements 2015-16 School Year

Students must pass all three portions of the High School Graduate Qualifying Exam (math, reading and writing), 21 cumulative credits <u>and</u> meet the minimum graduation levels (see below) to be eligible to graduate during the 2015-16 school year.

L10 READING L10 WRITING L10 or L11 MATH (or higher) L8 through L11 SOCIAL STUDIES (any 3, <u>must</u> include 0.5 in AK studies) L10 SCIENCE L10 TECHNOLOGY L10 CULTURE AWARENESS L10 EMPLOYABILITY

#### **Credit Conversion and Pacing Charts 2015-2016** Credit Conversion/Minimum Graduation Levels (shaded)

LI SD Levels in green, graduation levels in peach, numbers are grade levels													
Standard Area	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
Reading										1	1	1	1
Writing										1	1	1	1
Math*								(1)	1	1	1	1	1
Social Studies**									1	1	1	1	
Science										1	1	1	
Technology									.5	1	1		
Cultural Awareness										.5	1		
Employability									1	2	2		

LPSD Levels in green, graduation levels in peach, numbers are grade levels

\* Need a total of 3 credits in Math (students scheduled to graduate in 2016, 2017 receive 1 credit for Level 7)

\*\* Need to earn three social studies credits from Levels 8-11. Students must complete the AK Studies portion of Level 8 SS in order to graduate.

#### Pacing Chart

Standard Areas	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
Reading	K	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11+	
Writing	K	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11+	11+
Math*	K	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	10	11+
Social Studies**	K	1	2	3	4	5	6-7	7-8	9-11	9-11	9-11	9-11	12
Science	K	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11+	
Technology					4-5	5-6	6-7	7-8	9-12	9-12	9-12		
Cultural Awareness					4	5	6	7	8	9-12	9-12		
Employability					4-5	5-6	6-7	7-8	9-12	9-12	9-12		

# **Transfer Students**

In the case of a student entering from a school that requires Carnegie Units, the number of required credits for the student's remaining school year shall be adjusted on a proportionate basis to require at least 5.25 credits for each full year of attendance in schools of this District. Any deviation from this policy must be approved by the Board on an individual basis.

Questions regarding these requirements should be directed to the Superintendent. The School Board will consider unresolved questions.

In considering whether a student's transfer credits meet requirements, the Administrator of Instruction and Student Activities will exercise his/her judgment as to whether or not subjects transferred into LPSD are acceptable. Any significant deviations from LPSD's course requirements should be referred to the District Office before consideration for graduation.

# **Distance Education Course Offerings**

To be eligible for distance education coursework, students must first pass the minimum graduation level at full implementation of the SBS in one of the eight content areas. The school counselor will meet with the parents, student and teacher to determine the appropriate course work for each student. Once a distance course has been identified it must be submitted to the Administrator of Instruction and Student Activities for final approval. Parents will pay for the initial cost of tuition and books for all distance courses. Parents will be reimbursed for the distance course tuition and books once the student successfully completes the course with a 70% or higher.

# **STUDENT REPORTING:**

The Lake and Peninsula School District has established a reporting system and alternative approaches for measuring student performance. These measurements are consistent with the educational program in the District. Transfer students must be in attendance for a minimum of 20 days to receive a snapshot for any 9 weeks reporting period.

Appropriate snapshots, forms and procedures for reporting student progress to parents have been established by the district. The reporting tools are designed to help all parents understand their child's current level of achievement in all eight content areas. Weekly and/or bi-weekly communication with the community is essential to meet the educational goals of the District.

Reporting System for K through 12 The Lake and Peninsula School District Student and Parent Handbook Criteria for determining student movement through the District's curricular levels shall be guided by student performance as measured by: Skills based assessments Analytical assessments Performance based assessments

#### **Parent-teacher conferences**

Parent-teacher conferences are held at least twice per school year. Parents/Guardians are encouraged to contact the school and arrange conferences as desired.

#### STUDENT ACCIDENTS AND ACCIDENT INSURANCE

Parents are primarily responsible for their children's health care. The School District does not provide medical care or insurance for student injury that may occur while attending school or participating in school sponsored activities. The District can provide information on student school accident insurance. This insurance can be purchased by the parents. Contact the site Principal for more information.

# **STUDENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES**

The Lake and Peninsula School District Board of Education recognizes that education is a right not to be taken away without cause. This right, however, is conditional upon the individual's willingness to obey reasonable rules and regulations. Rules, regulations and disciplinary actions are to be directed toward serving educational outcomes. The School Board, given authority by the state government, delegates to the administration of the District the responsibility to use democratic principles and to exercise prudence in the formulation of essential and enforceable rules. Students must conduct themselves in an appropriate manner in which learning can take place and where mature behavior, self-discipline, and personal responsibility are nurtured.

Since it is necessary for rules and regulations to be established, students are to be informed of the rules and the rationales underlying them. Adult authority will be used to enforce these rules when it becomes necessary. The importance of individual rights and privileges that accrue from a democratic society can be maintained only if each individual assumes personal responsibility for his/her behavior.

#### **IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE STUDENT TO:**

Attend school daily, except when ill, and to be on time to all classes.

Express his/her opinions and ideas in a respectful manner so as not to offend or slander others.

Dress in a manner so as not to be an undue distraction or interfere with the activities of others.

Act responsibly at all times, and take into consideration the feelings of others. Do not interfere with the rights of others.

Conduct oneself in accordance with school rules, policies and expectations that regulate student behavior.

Be willing to volunteer information in disciplinary cases should you have knowledge of importance in such case.

Take an active part in student government by running for office or conscientiously voting for the best candidates.

Make problems known to the administration through the student government.

Review questions with the teacher before bringing grievances before a local administrator.

Question, review and understand current policies. The Lake and Peninsula School District Student and Parent Handbook Request a review of grades, assignments or tests.

Enhance the learning culture by approaching studies diligently and honestly.

# **CONCERNS/COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE**

The District recognizes that students/parents may have concerns regarding the professional staff, support staff, or the instructional program. By direction of the District School Board, the proper procedure for dealing with complaints will be as follows:

- 1. If the problem involves a classroom teacher, the complaint should go to the teacher first.
- 2. If the problem cannot be resolved with the teacher, the complaint should go to the Administrator/Head Teacher.
- 3. If the Administrator/Head Teacher cannot resolve the problem or if the problem involves the Administrator/Head Teacher, the complaint should go to a District Administrator. Every effort should be made to resolve the problem on the local level.
- 4. If the problem still cannot be resolved after consulting a District Administrator, the Superintendent should be consulted.
- 5. When all other attempts to solve the problem fail, it should be brought before the School Board. The Board's decision will be final.

# **DISCIPLINE**

#### **Board Policy 5144**

The School Board believes that one of the major functions of the public schools is the preparation of youth for responsible citizenship. The district shall foster a learning environment, which reinforces the concepts of self-discipline and the acceptance of personal responsibility. Students are expected to progress from being adult-directed to self-directed with minimal application of disciplinary measures.

The Board recognizes that there must exist certain disciplinary policies and regulations relating to student conduct which delineate acceptable behavior and provides the basis for sound disciplinary practices within each school in the district in order to maintain an environment conducive to learning. These policies and regulations will be enforced fairly and uniformly and consistently without regard to race, creed, color or sex.

The administration, teachers and classified staff share mutual responsibility for the enforcement of district policies and regulations pertaining to student conduct and safety. The Board shall give reasonable support and assistance to employees with respect to student discipline. The Board shall review its policies related to student rights and responsibility at least once every three years and shall modify its policies as needed in accordance with law.

The Board recognizes that not all students will adhere to district rules for appropriate behavior. Sufficient support services shall be provided so that continually disruptive students will not be returned to regular classes without some modification of behavior. Students may be assigned to other alternative programs or be subject to removal from school.

Each Principal/Head Teacher shall publish school rules for student discipline, which describe the school's behavior management plan and consequences for student misconduct. Special care shall be taken when developing school rules to solicit the views of the school community, including administrators, teachers, school security personnel, parents/guardians and students.

School site rules must be strictly based on district policy, regulation and state and federal laws and be enforced fairly and uniformly. The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for the approval of such rules.

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that every student and his/her parents/guardians are notified in writing of the availability of Board policies and administrative regulations related to student rights and responsibilities. Such policies shall be posted in accordance with law. (4 AAC 07.030)

#### **In-School Suspension**

In an effort to establish disciplinary procedures that are effective in reducing student truancy and misbehavior and do not interrupt the educational process, the School Board, Superintendent, or designee may authorize in-school suspension as an alternative to out-of-school suspension.

In-school suspension removes the student from the school social scene while still requiring him/her to maintain the same basic school day schedule and to keep up with required academic assignments. Failure to serve in-school suspension or removal from the in-school suspension program for disciplinary reasons shall result in out-of-school suspension or additional time assigned.

#### **Corporal Punishment**

Corporal punishment is prohibited by law as a disciplinary measure against any student. School administrators and teachers shall employ other means of disciplining students.

The prohibition on corporal punishment does not prevent the use of reasonable and appropriate force by a teacher or other supervising employee, which is necessary to maintain order or protect student welfare. Reasonable and necessary force or physical restraint against a student may be used to protect the student, or others, from physical injury; to obtain possession of a weapon or other dangerous object; to maintain reasonable order in the classroom or on school grounds; or to protect property from serious damage or destruction. The force shall not be greater than necessary to control the misconduct or dangerous situation. In no event may deadly force be used against a student.

#### **Reporting to Law Enforcement**

In addition to subjecting a student to discipline, any crime committed by a student while at school, on school grounds, or during any school sponsored activity on or off campus shall be reported to law enforcement. Criminal proceedings are independent of actions taken by the School District. The District may impose discipline for misconduct regardless of whether criminal charges are filed or a conviction is obtained. The Superintendent should ensure cooperation with law enforcement in the criminal investigation of students who commit crimes while under the jurisdiction of the school.

#### **Discipline of Special Education Students**

Most special education students will be disciplined according to the District's policies and procedures except for the following reasons: 1) The Student's Individualized Education Plan (IEP) calls for the modified disciplinary procedure and/or; 2) The Student's IEP team members hold a meeting and determine that the misconduct was related to the student's disability.

## **DISCIPLINE PROCEDURES**

#### Administrative Regulation 5144

(A) Corporal punishment is not allowed as a means of discipline in the Lake and Peninsula School District.

- (B) The Rules of Discipline. They are not binding to the extent they rule out common sense and good judgment but are cited in an effort to achieve fairness and consistency. In all cases parents will be notified as soon as the site administrator has cause to believe that a student is guilty of any of the following unacceptable behaviors.
- (C) Suspension and expulsion of pupils from school is allowed under District Guidelines.

#### **Detention:**

Each school and teacher in the District has the right to require a student to report for after-school detention. Parents will be notified prior to a child being detained. Detention may be assigned to assist a child who has fallen behind in studies or to discipline a child who has been a disruption at school or in class.

#### Suspension:

A Principal/Head Teacher may suspend temporarily a pupil from school for reasons only as outlined in AS 14.30.045.

Suspensions shall be immediately reported to the parent/guardian and to the Superintendent or Chief School Administrator.

Reasons for suspension, expulsion, or denial of admission of pupils by the Hearing Authority as detailed in Alaska Statutes are as follows:

- 1) Continued willful disobedience or open and persistent defiance of reasonable school authority.
- 2) Behavior which is inimical (harmful, hostile or adverse ) to the welfare, safety, or morals of other pupils.
- 3) A physical or mental condition, which in the opinion of competent medical authority will cause attendance of the child to be inimical to the welfare of other pupils.
- 4) A physical or mental condition which in the opinion of competent medical authority will render the child unable to reasonably benefit from the programs available.
- 5) Conviction of a felony, which the governing body (School Board) of the District determines will cause attendance of the child to be inimical to the welfare or education of other pupils.

Where suspension is specified or recommended, IN-SCHOOL SUSPENSION should be the first consideration. Only the most severe infractions should result in suspension out of school. In-house suspension means that the student is required to report to a specified supervised area where he/she has limited interaction with other students or the teachers. In one-teacher schools, for example, the student could be placed in an area of the room away from the students for the specified time. The suspended student would not participate in any class activities or interact in any way with the other students. The suspended student should have daily assignments given to him/her or be otherwise occupied with academic activities.

Students who have been suspended from school are not permitted on campus during school hours or to participate in or observe student activities during the period of suspension.

The following recommendations for consequences are meant to provide sites with general guidelines. It is to be understood that certain actions may call for recommendations outside the guidelines below.

- Use and/or possession of illegal drugs (substances).
   <u>Penalty</u>: 3 days minimum suspension. Village Public Safety Officer (VPSO) / State Troopers will be notified. Expulsion may be recommended.
- 2) Use and/or possession of alcohol.

<u>Penalty</u>: 3 days minimum suspension. VPSO/ State Troopers will be notified. Second offenders may be subject to expulsion.

- Fighting or the physical abuse of another. <u>Penalty</u>: 1 day to 10 days of suspension. VPSO/State Trooper may be notified.
- Possession of dangerous or illegal weapon.
   <u>Penalty</u>: Expulsion based upon State and Federal Law.
- 5) Harassment/physical attacks on teachers/staff members. This includes all forms of harassment such as verbal, sexual, racial, physical threats and gestures, hazing, and threatening words. Penalty: 1 to 10 day suspension. Parent notification and conference established as soon as possible after the incident. Superintendent/Chief School Administrator, District Office Administrators or immediate supervisor notified. May be recommended for expulsion. Subject to arrest.

#### 6) Vandalism.

<u>Penalty</u>: Restitution, possible suspension and VPSO/State Troopers notified in cases of damage to District property. A complaint will be filed by the Site Administrator.

7) Theft.

<u>Penalty</u>: Restitution, possible suspension and notice to the VPSO/ State Trooper. In cases of theft of District property, a complaint will be filed by the Site Administrator.

- Internet Usage Policy Violation (see student use agreement) <u>Penalty</u>: Downloaded materials will be sent to parents. 1st offense: 1 to 3 day suspension; 2nd offense: 3 to 5 days suspension; 3rd offense: 5 to 10 days suspension. May be denied access to computers at any time.
- Use of tobacco at school or on school grounds. <u>Penalty</u>: 1st offense: 1 to 3 day suspension, 2nd offense: 3 to 5 days suspension. All infractions require notification of parents and proper authorities.
- 10) Profanity, obscenity, or verbal abuse.

This includes: lewd, vulgar, improper, offensive, disrespectful words. Students are to use discretion in their language. Profane and/or obscene language will not be tolerated. Teacher will use judgment in applying penalties.

<u>Penalty</u>: 1st offense: 1day in-school suspension (if possible), parent conference required. 2nd offense: 1day out of school suspension, parent conference required. 3rd offense: 3-5 days out-of-school suspension, parent conference required.

- Defiance of school authority.
   <u>Penalty</u>: 1st offense: 1 to 3 days suspension, 2nd offense: 3 to 5 days suspension. Expulsion may be recommended.
- 12) Disruptive behavior in school. <u>Penalty</u>: Recommended sanction is at the discretion of the site administrator depending on infraction.
- Snowball/Rock Throwing.
   <u>Penalty</u>: Recommended sanction is at the discretion of the site administrator depending on infraction.
- 14) False Alarm. Note: <u>False Alarms are illegal according to State Law</u>.
   <u>Penalty</u>: 1st offense: 1 to 5 days suspension. VPSO/State Trooper will be notified. 2nd offense: 5 to 10 days suspension. VPSO/State Trooper will be notified

A "False Alarm" is defined in AS 11.56.800(3) as making a false report or giving a false alarm that a fire or other incident dangerous to life or property and calling for an emergency response has occurred or is about to occur. The penalty: Up to \$5,000.00 fine and up to a year in jail.

15) Violation of School Rules and Policies while <u>A Member of a School Sponsored Team and/or on any and all</u> <u>District Sponsored Activities</u>.

Students are to conduct themselves in accordance with school rules, policies and expectations that regulate student behavior at all times while on any and all District sponsored activities and District sponsored trips. The following penalties apply while a Member of a School Sponsored Team and/or on any and all District Sponsored Activities. Severity of Offense may require notification of law enforcement.

# <u>Penalty</u>: 1st infraction: No activity and travel for 45 school days from date of decision. 2nd infraction: No activity and travel for 90 school days from date of decision. 3rd infraction: No student activity and travel for 1 school year (36 school weeks) from date of decision. 4th infraction: No student activity and travel for any student activities for remainder of student's school career with LPSD.

16) Academic Honesty.

Academic Honesty is the practice of a moral code by students and teacher alike. Academic dishonesty includes plagiarism (*Plagiarism is taking the ideas of another and using them without giving proper credit. It is a form of stealing and a serious academic offense*), inappropriate assistance, cheating, fabrication or falsification of work, and calling someone else's work your own. Academic Dishonesty is not acceptable and will not be tolerated. 1st infraction: Ineligible for student travel and extracurricular activities for 20 school days will fail the assignment and require parent conference. 2nd infraction: parent conference, failed assignment and ineligible for student travel and extracurricular activities for 45 school days.

Penalties are cumulative. Infractions will accumulate during the student's entire high school career.

#### Alcohol, Drugs, and Tobacco:

#### Board Policy 5131.6 & 5131.62

**Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 5131.7** 

The District enforces a zero tolerance policy concerning alcohol, drugs and tobacco.

Students found in possession or under the influence of tobacco, alcohol, or a controlled substances while on school grounds will face disciplinary sanctions. Students found in possession or under the influence of tobaccos, alcohol, or a controlled substance while on a school sponsored trip will be transported back to site immediately after notification of the District Office and Parents.

Prohibited Conduct: The possession, distribution or use of any tobacco products, alcohol and controlled substances by a student whether it occurs on or off school property, is prohibited and shall result in the following penalties;

Substance Abuse Programs are available through Bristol Bay Area Health Program. Please contact them for additional information.

# WEAPONS AND DANGEROUS INSTRUMENTS

The Superintendent or designee shall permit the possession of weapons, dangerous or deadly instruments, or their replicas at school or at school-related or school-sponsored activities only at the request of a teacher and with the assurance that such possession serves a positive, appropriate purpose. Before granting permission, the Superintendent or designee shall verify that proper precautions have been taken to ensure that no accidents will occur and that the weapon or dangerous or deadly instrument will not be misused while under school supervision.

(Some examples of weapons are guns, knives (a blade more than 2.5 inches in length) and incendiary devices (a device designed to explode). It is to be understood that any item used to inflict harm to another individual may be defined as a weapon)

#### Weapons Reports

A school employee confiscating any weapon or dangerous or deadly instrument shall deliver it to the building Principal/Head Teacher or other appropriate authority immediately.

If an employee confiscates a weapon or dangerous or deadly instrument or knows or suspects that a student possesses such a weapon or instrument which has not been confiscated, the employee shall report the matter to the Principal/Head Teacher immediately, and the Principal/Head Teacher shall take appropriate action.

When informing the Principal/Head Teacher about the possession or confiscation of a weapon or dangerous or deadly instrument, the employee shall report the name(s) of persons involved the names of any witnesses, and the location and circumstances of the matter.

The Principal/Head Teacher shall report any possession of a weapon or dangerous or deadly instrument to the student's parents by telephone or in person, if practicable, and shall follow this notification with written notification to the parents, and shall report all violations of this policy to the Superintendent.

#### **Disciplinary Action**

The Principal/Head Teacher shall take appropriate disciplinary action in accordance with existing School Board policies and regulations and shall report all such actions to the Superintendent or designee.

When the weapon involved is a firearm, as defined in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code, or a deadly weapon as prohibited in AS 14.03.160, the Principal/Head Teacher shall immediately refer the matter to the Superintendent or designee for appropriate action. In cases of firearms, the Superintendent or designee shall recommend the student's expulsion from school for a period of not less than one (1) calendar year. In cases of deadly weapons, the Superintendent or designee shall suspend the student for a period not less than 30 days. A different period of suspension or expulsion may be justified after consideration of the matter on a case-by-case basis. The Superintendent or designee shall consider any special circumstances involved in the violation, including those in aggravation or mitigation. The Superintendent or designee shall also be responsible for referring to law enforcement authorities any student who violates this policy.

If the student involved has an individual education plan, an IEP team meeting will be called to determine whether there is a connection between the behavior and the disability and to determine appropriate discipline or placement of the student, in accordance with applicable law.

A student who has been suspended or expelled for violating this policy may seek early reinstatement by submitting a written request to the Superintendent or designee. The request must identify all the reasons why the student feels that early reinstatement is appropriate. In evaluating the request, the Superintendent or designee should consider the severity of the weapons violation, the student's discipline record, the amount of the suspension of expulsion the student has served at the time of the request, and any other relevant criteria. As a requirement of early readmission, a student must sign a written contract with the district which identifies conditions of early reinstatement. The contract shall clearly state that any violation of school rules by the student will result in immediate reinstatement of the remaining suspension or expulsion period for the prior weapon violation. A decision of the Superintendent or designee to grant or deny a request for early readmission shall be final and the student will be notified of the decision within ten school days.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide the School Board with a written report of all violations of this policy, including the circumstances of the violation, the type of weapon involved, and the disciplinary or other action taken in response to the violation of policy.

## **DUE PROCESS**

#### **Due Process Procedural Requirements:**

- In any disciplinary action, including suspension of ten (10) school days or less, the student (s) shall have the opportunity to contest any alleged fact leading to disciplinary or other action taken against him/her. He/she has the right to have his/her claims heard before the Principal/Head Teacher. The student shall have the opportunity to have his/her parent(s)/guardian(s) present and to be informed of all the evidence and arguments against him/her. The findings of the Principal/ Head Teacher shall be final.
- 2) When the Principal/Head Teacher or the Superintendent or Chief School Administrator or designee recommends suspension of more than ten (10) school days, a written notice of said intent shall be delivered by Certified Mail or in person to the student and his/her parent/guardian. This Notice shall state the student's right to a fair hearing, specific charges lodged against him/her, and the recommended sanctions.
- 3) The student and/or his/her parent/guardian shall reply in writing within five (5) school days of receipt of the Notice of Suspension, indicating whether he/she shall request a hearing, whether he/she will be represented by legal counsel, and whether he/she wishes the hearing be opened or closed. If such a reply is not received within the five-day period, the student and his/her parent/guardian shall be deemed to have waived his/her right to a hearing and the recommended sanction shall take effect. If a hearing is requested, it shall be held within five (5) school days of such a request.
- 4) The Hearing Authority, who shall be the School District Superintendent or Chief School Administrator, may request the student and parent/guardian to attempt conciliation first, but if the student and parent/guardian decline this request, the Hearing Authority shall schedule the hearing in accordance with these rules:
  - a) Written Notice of charges against a student and recommended sanctions shall be supplied to the student and his/her parent/guardian.
  - b) Parent/guardian should be present at the hearing.
  - c) The student and parent/guardian may be represented by legal counsel.
  - d) The student shall be permitted to inspect in advance of such hearing any affidavits or exhibits, which school authorities intend to submit at the hearing.
  - e) The student shall be given an opportunity to present his/her version as to the charges by oral or written argument, affidavits, exhibits, and such witnesses as desired.
  - f) All relevant, not duly repetitious, evidence shall be accepted.
  - g) The student shall be allowed to observe all evidence offered against him/her. In addition, he/she shall be allowed to question any witnesses.
  - h) The Hearing Authority shall make determination solely upon the evidence presented at the hearing.
  - i) Either a tape-recorded or verbatim record shall be made of the hearing by School District.
  - j) Within three (3) school days of the hearing, the Hearing Authority shall render its decision upholding, modifying in any manner, or repudiating the recommended sanction. The student and his/her parent/guardian shall be mailed or otherwise provided with a written statement of the decision, supported by written findings of fact, within five (5) school days of the hearing.

#### **Interim Suspension:**

Suspension ordered by the Superintendent or Chief School Administrator or designee without the right to a prior hearing in cases where a student is reasonably believed to be a danger to him/herself, to other students, teachers, school administrators, or the educational process of the student's school. If a student is placed in Interim Suspension, the student, or his/her parent/guardian has the right, upon submitting a written request within three (3) days of his/her suspension, to request an immediate hearing before the Superintendent or Chief School Administrator who shall then schedule and hold the hearing within five (5) school days of such a request. No Interim Suspension shall exceed seven (7) school days, by which time the student is either reinstated by the suspending authority or given a fair hearing.

#### **Expulsion:**

Expulsion is defined as the denial of the right of school attendance for an indefinite period of time. No student shall be expelled unless other means of correction have failed or would not be adequate in bringing about proper conduct. In addition, the matter of an expelled student's further education shall be referred to the appropriate authority.

Suspension from school as a penalty is used for various infractions of school rules. When a student is suspended the case may be referred to the Board of Education for an expulsion hearing. Parents and all other concerned parties will be informed in writing of the Board's hearing. When a student has been expelled by the Board, they may be re-admitted only by the Board or in the manner prescribed by it.

#### **Expulsion Procedural Requirements:**

 When the Superintendent or Chief School Administrator or designee recommends expulsion, a written Notice of said intent shall be delivered by Certified Mail or in person to the student and his/her parent/guardian. This Notice shall state the student's right to a fair hearing, specific charges lodged against him/her, and the recommended sanctions.

The student and/or his/her parent/guardian shall reply in writing within five (5) school days of receipt of the Notice of Expulsion, indicating whether he/she shall request a hearing, whether he/she will be represented by legal counsel, and whether he/she wishes the hearing to be open or closed. If such a reply is not received within the five-day period, the student and his/her parent/guardian shall be deemed to have waived his/her right to a hearing and the recommended sanction shall take effect. If a hearing is requested, it shall be held within ten (10) days of such a request.

- 2) The Hearing Authority, who shall be the District School Board, may request the student and parent/guardian to attempt conciliation first, but if the student and parent/guardian decline this request, the Hearing Authority shall schedule the hearing in accordance with these rules:
  - a) Written Notice of charges against a student be supplied to the student and his/her parent/guardian.
  - b) The parent/guardian should be at the hearing.
  - c) The student and parent/guardian may be represented by legal counsel.
  - d) The student shall be permitted to inspect in advance of such hearing any affidavits or exhibits, which school authorities intend to submit at the hearing.
  - e) The student shall be given an opportunity to present his/her version as to the charges by oral or written argument, affidavits, exhibits, and such witnesses as desired.
  - f) All relevant, not duly repetitious, evidence shall be accepted.
  - g) The student shall be allowed to observe all evidence offered against him/her. In addition, he/she shall be allowed to question any witness.
  - h) The Hearing Authority shall make determination solely upon the evidence presented at the hearing.
  - i) Either a tape-recorded or verbatim record shall be made of the hearing by the School District.
  - j) Within three (3) school days of the hearing, the hearing authority shall render its decision upholding, modifying in any manner, or repudiating the recommended sanction. The student and his/her parent/guardian shall be mailed or otherwise provided with a written statement of the decision, supported by written findings of fact, within five (5) school days of the hearing.

#### **Re-admissions:**

#### School Law 14.30.047

A child who has been suspended from or denied admittance to a school according to Section 45 (3) or (4) of this Chapter shall be permitted to attend school when he is obviously recovered or presents to the governing body a statement in writing from a competent medical authority that he/she is no longer afflicted with or suffering from, the physical or mental condition to the extent that it is a cause for suspension or denial of admission according to Section 45 (3) or (4) of this Chapter.

# VISITORS TO THE SCHOOL

All visitors must report to the office and receive Head-Teacher or Principal permission to be in the building prior to going to other parts of the building. Loitering by unauthorized individuals will not be permitted.

Students who have withdrawn from school or are under a school suspension are not permitted on campus during school hours or to participate in student activities without the permission of the site administrator.

# **PUBLIC DISPLAY OF AFFECTION**

Public display of affection, such as kissing, necking, petting, etc. on campus is regarded as inappropriate behavior. Students will be informed of inappropriate behavior. Parents will be notified and student will be subject to discipline.

# **CELL PHONES/ELECTRONIC DEVICES**

Cell phones, iPods, CD players and other electronic devices are to be turned off and out of sight during class unless the teacher has given specific permission for their use. If an item is confiscated for violation of class rules, it may be retrieved from the teacher on the first offense. For subsequent offenses, the item will be turned over to the Site Administrator. A meeting to include the student, parents, teacher and Site Administrator will be required before retrieval of the item.

# SCHOOL PHONE

Since most of our teachers are in class all day, it is important to reduce the number of calls to students or teachers while they are in class. Each site administrator shall advise parents of the times when calls may be made to the school.

# **SEARCH AND SEIZURE**

**Board Policy 5145.12** The School Board is committed to maintaining an environment for students and staff which is safe and conducive to learning and working. The Board recognizes that incidents may occur where the health, safety and welfare of students and staff are jeopardized and which necessitate the search and seizure of students, their property or their lockers by school officials.

Because lockers are under the joint control of the student and the district, school officials shall have the right and ability to open and inspect any school locker without student permission when they have reasonable suspicion that the search will disclose evidence of illegal possessions or activity or when odors, smoke, fire and/or other threats to student health, welfare or safety emanate from the locker.

# **ACTIVITY TRAVEL/STUDENT RELEASE**

#### **Administrative Regulation AR 5131.8**

Due to safety and legal liability responsibilities, the district discourages parents/guardians from requesting a student release. Chaperones will only release students to immediate family members, including: parents, grandparents and siblings 21 years of age or older. Family members must have been previously approved and have signed the Request For Travel Release Responsibility form.

In order for a student release to be granted the following conditions are required:

- Signatures of parents, Site Administrator and Activities Coordinator MUST BE OBTAINED prior 1. to student departure for planned activity.
- 2 Release only to immediate family member listed on student release form.
- 3. Student release will in no way interfere with full participation in activity.
- 4. Chaperone must have verification of the release.
- 5 Chaperone has the right to refuse release if student's safety is a concern.

## FIELD TRIPS/STUDENT TRAVEL

#### **Board Policy 5131.8**

Field trips may be planned for groups of students throughout the year. These activities enhance our total educational program.

Student field trips and student travel sponsored by the school must be carefully planned. No student travel away from the local school site may be made without prior approval of the District Office. Considerations must be made with regard to funding, timeliness, and sufficient educational benefit prior to approval of any student travel.

Student travel on all school-sponsored trips shall be on District approved vendors. Approval of the Superintendent must be obtained prior to any travel using any method of transportation outside of the list of District approved travel providers. District Policy details procedures for submitting student travel requests for approval by the District School Board and District Office.

The Administrator/Head Teacher must submit a travel proposal to the Activities Coordinator 60 days prior to the proposed travel date. The Activities Coordinator has the responsibility to inform the Superintendent of all student travel requests.

Note: All school rules, eligibility criteria, discipline, conduct rules, etc. apply during any student travel sponsored by the District.

# **EXTRA-CURRICULAR and OFF-SITE CURRICULAR ACTIVITY ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS**

<u>An LPSD student must adhere to the following guidelines if they wish to be eligible for school-sponsored</u> trips: Students may also be held to the guidelines as outlines by the Alaska School Activities Association.

Starting their freshman year, a student must have passed a minimum of 4 levels (or classes) the previous school year to be eligible. An eighth grade student is eligible regardless of their prior academic performance.

A middle school student must be developing in level 7 Employability to be eligible for travel.

A High School student must be developing in level 8 Employability to be eligible for travel.

The student must have no more than <u>ten</u> absences a semester. If absences exceed 10, the student will be ineligible for the remainder of the semester.

Suspensions (in or out of school) will result in a student becoming ineligible for extra-curricular activity participation until reinstated by the site Principal

The students must be drug, alcohol and tobacco free. Students who are caught using these substances will be subject to district policy as outlined in the student handbook.

The student must be developing in all content areas. A student will be eligible when they bring their emerging scores to developing or proficient.

LPSD defines developing and emerging as follows:

<u>Developing-</u>The student is scoring below 80% on classroom assignments and projects. The student is making steady progress toward 80% proficiency. Assignments are complete and handed in on time.

<u>Emerging</u>-The student is not making progress toward the 80% proficiency. Assignments are not complete and/or are not handed in on time. Students must also be attempting to make progress in their academic programs.

#### For the student athlete:

All of the above guidelines are required for student athletes. In addition:

The student must maintain a 90% attendance rate at practice to be eligible for travel. What constitutes 90% attendance is at the discretion of the site administrator.

The student must be in attendance the day before, the day of and the next school day after an event, if applicable. If they are absent on any of these days, they will be ineligible for the following event. A student must attend the entire day of school the day of an event, except for required travel time. A student who is more than 30 minutes late, for any class, is considered absent and will not be eligible for the event.

**Physicals:** A student must have a physical and ASAA physical form completed by the first day of practice (for both Mix 3 and ASAA sanctioned sports). The physical must be completed by a physician, physician assistant or advanced nurse practitioner. If, due to scheduling, a student is unable to get their physical before the start of practice, a waiver form needs to be requested and returned to the district office.

#### If a student is sent home from a trip:

A letter will be sent to the parents or guardians and the student will not be allowed to travel again until the district receives reimbursement, in the form of community service, for the cost of the trip. The community service will be arranged through the Activities Director.

The student will be ineligible for all extracurricular travel for 45 calendar days.

After the 45-day suspension period, the student must submit a letter of apology to the LPSD Superintendent and ask for their eligibility to be reinstated. The letter must contain the offense and the corrections made to ensure it won't happen again.

Repeat violations resulting in being sent home will reviewed by the School Board and the length of ineligibility will be determined.

A student will also be held to site and district discipline policies when they return to their school site.

#### Other instances that will result in a review of a student's eligibility:

Leaving a school sponsored trip for non-emergency situations.

Not attending a trip without giving at least a 7 calendar day notice of cancellation.

#### **Conduct at School:**

Students must conduct themselves in an acceptable manner with all school staff. If a student is reported as having poor conduct in one class, he/she will be declared ineligible for extracurricular activities for the next week.

#### **Conduct on Trips:**

Students are required to conduct themselves properly while participating in activities and the guest of another school. A student shall not disobey rules or regulations that have been established by the coach, supervisor, chaperone, or hosting school. Infringements of this section shall be dealt within accordance with the student disciplinary section of Board Policy. Severe infractions of regulations by students while they are away from the home site may result in students being sent home immediately. The student(s) will have an opportunity to present his/her case. The appropriate penalty shall be imposed if the student(s) is found to be in noncompliance with the behavior expectations of District, the local handbook or local coach. The most severe penalty being that of prohibiting participation in extracurricular and off-site curricular activities for the remainder of his/her term as a student. If a student is sent home they will not be allowed to travel again until they have completed community service to work off the cost of the return trip; this will be arranged through the Activities Director. After the suspension period is completed, the student must write a letter to the LPSD Superintendent and ask for their eligibility to be reinstated. The letter must detail the offense and the corrections made to ensure it won't happen again. A student will also be held to site and district discipline policies when they return to their school site. The letter will be shared by the Superintendent with the LPSD School Board.

# Weather Restrictions and Conditions for all Student Travel

Student travel is prohibited on any piston aircraft when the ambient air temperature is twenty (20) degrees Fahrenheit below zero or colder.

Student travel is prohibited on any turbine aircraft when the ambient air temperature is thirty (30) degrees Fahrenheit below zero or colder.

Students are not to be transported in the back of an open vehicle if the ambient air temperature is twenty (20) degrees Fahrenheit below zero or colder.

#### Student travel at these temperatures is at the discretion of the individual.

Be aware that we all need to renew our awareness of the increased danger of travel due to inclement weather and short daylight hours available for flying at certain times of the year.

Please take the extra precautions to provide for the maximum safety margins we owe the students, staff and ourselves. These extra precautions include, at the minimum, the following:

1. Prior planning, including written travel information with students' names, telephone numbers, addresses and dates of travel. This should be available for the travel coordinator no later than one week before travel is to begin. Of course, we will always deal with emergencies, but the longer lead time we have, the better we can get the job done.

2. <u>All students and chaperones traveling on District sponsored aircraft, are required to be dressed</u> <u>appropriately for the weather</u>. We must be adamant on this requirement with students. This requirement shall be observed during the winter months which extend to April in our area.

3. All personnel are reminded that at no time should they feel compelled to travel when conditions are questionable. If you think that weather or other conditions warrant a postponement or rescheduling, please inform District Office that a plane should not be sent for you or your students.

# It is vital that everyone exercise these safety precautions and planning activities that benefit all of us. Thank you for your cooperation.

#### **Statement of Understanding**

Students enrolled in LPSD grades 5 through graduation will be required to sign a "Statement of Understanding" signifying that the eligibility requirements and penalties have been read and understood. This must be signed and on file before any participation can take place. (See attached Statement of Understanding)

Parents(s) or guardian(s) of all students regardless of student level will be required to sign a "Statement of Understanding" signifying that the eligibility requirements and penalties have been read and understood. This must be signed and on file before any participation can take place. (See attached Statement of Understanding)



# THE LAKE AND PENINSULA SCHOOL DISTRICT INTERNET SAFETY and ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY

# **Introduction:**

The computers, hardware, software, and local area computer network (LAN) in each school and the district office are maintained to provide a variety of quality educational resources to the students, staff, and communities of the Lake and Peninsula School District including:

- Electronic Mail (e-mail)
- The World Wide Web and other Internet Resources
- File sharing of local and District information

# • Computer equipment and software

The goal in providing these services is to support the District's Mission and Student Outcomes by facilitating resource sharing, innovations, research, and communication.

# Internet Safety & Acceptable Use Policy:

In response to the Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA) and subsequent Federal Communications Commission (FCC) rulings on the implementation of the Act, Lake and Peninsula School District has implemented the following measures to insure the safety of it students and comply with the requirements of the Act.

- 1. To prevent access to visual depictions of an obscene or child pornographic nature, Lake and Peninsula School District will implement a technology protection measure filter all web access on all computers to inappropriate visual materials and supervise all student use of computers.
- 2. To prevent access by minors to inappropriate matter on the Internet, Lake and Peninsula School District will supervise all student use of computers and may filter student internet access using filtering software.
- 3. To insure the safety and security of minors when using e-mail, chat rooms, etc., Lake and Peninsula School District will supervise all student use of computers and may filter student internet access using filtering software
- 4. To prevent unauthorized access such as "hacking" and other unlawful activities by minors, Lake and Peninsula School District will utilize network security and maintenance software and will supervise all student use of computers.
- 5. To present unauthorized disclosure, use and dissemination of personal information regarding minors, Lake and Peninsula School District will ensure that students are under adult supervision when using computers and will educate students to the risks of disclosure of personal information on the internet.
- 6. To restrict minors' access to materials harmful to minors, Lake and Peninsula School District will supervise all student use of computers and may filter student internet access using filtering software.

With access to computers and people locally and world-wide, materials that may not be considered to be of educational value in the context of the school setting becomes available.

While internet content filtering will enable the blocking of access to known inappropriate resources and services designed to defeat filtering, no electronic technology measure can guarantee blocking of all non-educational materials. The District believes, however, that the benefits of the computer network including the value of the information and the opportunities for interaction with colleagues and peers far outweigh the possibility that users may obtain material that is objectionable, controversial, or not consistent with the educational goals of Lake and Peninsula School District.

The inappropriate use of the Lake and Peninsula Schools District's computer network will result in a cancellation of the privilege of using the computer network and possible disciplinary action. Electronic mail, internet use and other network activity is not private. The computer equipment and software within the school, as well as the electronic mail and internet services are the property of the District. Lake and Peninsula School District reserves the right to access and/or monitor any and all activity and materials performed on, or contained on, District equipment or networks. Each user will be responsible for complying with the guidelines set forth in this "Internet Safety and Acceptable Use Policy" and applicable internet and technology procedures. Privileges will be denied, revoked or suspended for users who do not comply with the terms of the Internet Safety and Acceptable Use Agreement. Users identified as a security risk, or identified as having a history of inappropriate use or problems with other computer systems will be denied access to the network. Any employee identified as having violated District safety and use guidelines will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

All students, staff, or other users must have a signed copy of this agreement on file with the site administrator before access to the Network will be allowed. It is important that users and parents carefully read and understand this Internet Safety and Acceptable Use Policy and Agreement. If you have any questions about the contents of this policy or agreement, contact your local site administrator or District Technology Staff.

# Internet Safety & Acceptable Use Guidelines (rules for network resource use):

- 1. Students accessing network services MUST BE under the supervision of a staff member or adult approved by the local site administrator.
- 2. Users must follow the directions of the adult responsible for supervision, the terms of this Internet Safety and Acceptable Use Agreement, and proper network etiquette.
- 3. Users must comply with the established rules of other organization's network or computing resources, while using those networks or resources.
- 4. User ID's are to be used only by the authorized owner of the account. Users shall not intentionally seek information on. Obtain copies of, or modify files, other data, or passwords belonging to other users.
- 5. Users identifying a security problem on the network must immediately notify the site administrator or the area Technology Specialist and shall not demonstrate the problem to others.
- 6. Users must utilize District sponsored or approved e-mail systems. All District electronic communication shall be conducted on District electronic mail systems and web servers.
- 7. Users finding an inappropriate e-mail message, web site, or file, MUST immediately back out of the area and report the incident to the supervision adult or local network administrator.
- 8. Users may not pass bulk "chain mail" via District e-mail systems.
- 9. Students will not reveal their home address, home phone number, social security number or any other personal information for themselves or others to anyone.
- 10. Users may publish only those documents which conform to the District's Publishing Guidelines, have been edited by a staff member, and have proper approval.
- 11. Users shall be responsible for additional on-line fees or merchandise charges they incur that are not covered by District or School access services.
- 12. Users must follow applicable copyright laws, obtaining proper use permissions and include the author or source of e-mail messages, web pages, or files when copying portions of documents.
- 13. Never read someone else's e-mail or files without permission; provided however, that this provision shall not impair or prohibit the District's right to review and monitor computer and network usage.
- 14. Users must act in a responsible, ethical and legal manner in accordance with any Federal, State or District laws, rules, policies, guidelines or regulations. Use of the network for the following purposes is prohibited:
  - a. Facilitating illegal activity.
  - b. Promoting or advertising for commercial or for-profit products or services
  - c. Promoting political campaigning, political lobbying or religious purposes.
  - d. Performing non-work/school related work during regular school/work hours.
  - e. Creating or transmitting hate mail, discriminatory remarks, profane or inappropriate language, offensive or inflammatory communication.
  - f. Illegally installing, distributing, modifying, reproducing or using copyrighted material.
  - g. Accessing obscene or pornographic material.
  - h. Intentionally obtaining or modifying files, passwords or data belonging to others.
  - i. Impersonating other users (utilizing another user's password or access)
  - j. Posting anonymous messages.

- k. Installing, downloading, or uploading unauthorized or non-licensed games, programs, files, or other electronic media.
- 1. Destroying, modifying or abusing hardware, software, or data that could disrupt network services.
- m. Disrupting the work or learning environment of other users on the network.
- n. Quoting or forwarding personal communications in a public forum, including, but not limited to chat rooms and listservs, without the original author's prior consent.
- o. Student participation in non-District sponsored "Chat" areas.
- p. Student use of non-District sponsored e-mail accounts.

# Network Etiquette (suggestions for considerate use of network resources):

- 1. Be polite Use appropriate language. Be carful in your use of sarcasm, anger and other emotions. It may not always come through the way you intended. Be professional and careful what you say about others. E-mail is easily forwarded.
- 2. Double check the mailing address(es) before you send your message. Be sure your message is going where you want it to go.
- 3. Keep paragraphs and e-mail short and to the point.
- 4. Use correct grammar, spelling, and punctuation.
- 5. Use both UPPER and lowercase letters in your messages. It is normally inappropriate to use all capital letters. IT LOOKS LIKE YOU ARE SHOUTING.
- 6. Type your name at the end of each message to "sign" your message.
- 7. Delete messages as soon as possible to free up valuable storage space on mail servers.
- 8. Use bulk mailing techniques only when necessary. Don't "spam" users of the system.
- 9. Print only the important parts of e-mail messages, web pages or files. Don't waste paper.

All students, staff, or other users must have a signed copy of this form on file with the Lake and Peninsula School District before access to the Network will be allowed. It is important that users and parents carefully read and understand the terms of this Internet Safety & Acceptable Use Policy. If you have any questions about the contents of this agreement, contact your local site administrator or district technology staff.

By entering into this User Agreement, the user and his or her parents or guardians agree to release the District from liability and waive any and all rights to assert claims or damages which may arise due to or as a result of any use of the District's computers and network services.

# **Parent Notice for Directory Information**

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), a Federal law, requires that the Lake and Peninsula School District, with certain exceptions, obtain your written consent prior to the disclosure of personally identifiable information from your child's education records. However, the Lake and Peninsula School District may disclose appropriately designated "directory information" without written consent, unless you have advised the District to the contrary in accordance with District procedures. The primary purpose of directory information is to allow the Lake and Peninsula School District to include this type of information from your child's education records in certain school publications. Examples include:

- A playbill, showing your student's role in a drama production;
- The annual yearbook;
- Honor roll or other recognition lists;
- Graduation programs; and
- Sports activity sheets, such as for wrestling, showing weight and height of team members.

Directory information, which is information that is generally not considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if released, can also be disclosed to outside organizations without a parent's prior written consent. Outside organizations include, but are not limited to, companies that manufacture class rings or publish yearbooks. In addition, two federal laws require local educational agencies (LEAs) receiving assistance under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (ESEA) to provide military recruiters, upon request, with three directory information categories - names, addresses and telephone listings, unless parents have advised the LEA that they do not want their student's information disclosed without their prior written consent.

The Lake and Peninsula School District has designated the following information as directory information:

- Student's name
- Participation in officially recognized activities and sports
- Address
- Telephone listing
- Child's photograph
- Weight and height of members of athletic teams
- Degrees, honors, and awards received
- Date and place of birth
- Major field of study
- Dates of attendance
- The most recent educational agency or institution attended

If you do not want the Lake and Peninsula School District to disclose directory information from your child's education records without your prior written consent, you must notify the District in writing by September 11, 2013. Please contact the Principal/Head Teacher at your child's school to complete the "opt out" form.

# **Notice for Student Record Requests**

The Lake and Peninsula School District forwards all educational records (including discipline and suspension reports) to other agencies or institutions that have requested records and in which the student seeks or intends to enroll. At the request of the parent or eligible student a copy of the record that was disclosed will be provided.